# WAK3300

User manual Manuel d'utilisation Manual del usuario



# PHILIPS



# **Philips Consumer Electronics**

HK- 0638-WAK3300 (report No.)

# **EC DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY**

We,

Philips Consumer Electronics (manufactureris name)

Philips, Glaslaan 2, 5616 JB Eindhoven, The Netherlands (manufactureris address)

declare under our responsibility that the electrical product:

Philips (name)

WAK3300/12, /05 (type or model)

Wireless Music Station (product description)

to which this declaration relates is in conformity with the following standards:

EN55013 : 2001 + A1: 2003 EN55020 : 2002 + A1 :2003 EN 55022: 1998 + A1: 2000 + A2: 2003 EN 55024: 1998 + A1: 2001 + A2: 2003 EN 60065 : 2002 EN 300 328 : 2004 EN 301 489-1 : 2004 EN 301 489-17: 2002 EN 50385 : 2002 IEC Guide 112 : 2000

(title and/or number and date of issue of the standards)

following the provisions of R &TTE Directive 1999/5/EC (incl. 89/336/EEC & 73/23/EEC & 93/68/EEC directives and is produced by a manufacturing organization on ISO 9000 level.

Eindhoven, September 19, 2006 (place, date)

<u>e</u>

Eric Tijssen Program Manager PCE I-Lab Entertainment Solutions (signature, name and function)

# Index

English

Español Français

English 4
8
Francais 44
Español 84

# Important notes for users in the U.K.

### Mains plug

This apparatus is fitted with an approved 13 Amp plug. To change a fuse in this type of plug proceed as follows:

- 1 Remove fuse cover and fuse.
- **2** Fix new fuse which should be a BS1362 5 Amp, A.S.T.A. or BSI approved type.
- **3** Refit the fuse cover.

If the fitted plug is not suitable for your socket outlets, it should be cut off and an appropriate plug fitted in its place.

If the mains plug contains a fuse, this should have a value of 5 Amp. If a plug without a fuse is used, the fuse at the distribution board should not be greater than 5 Amp.

Note: The severed plug must be disposed of to avoid a possible shock hazard should it be inserted into a 13 Amp socket elsewhere.

# How to connect a plug

The wires in the mains lead are coloured with the following code: blue = neutral (N), brown = live (L).

- As these colours may not correspond with the colour markings identifying the terminals in your plug, proceed as follows:
  - Connect the blue wire to the terminal marked N or coloured black.
  - Connect the brown wire to the terminal marked L or coloured red.
  - Do not connect either wire to the earth terminal in the plug, marked E (or <sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>) or coloured green (or green and yellow).

Before replacing the plug cover, make certain that the cord grip is clamped over the sheath of the lead - not simply over the two wires.

# Copyright in the U.K.

Recording and playback of material may require consent. See Copyright Act 1956 and The Performer's Protection Acts 1958 to 1972.

# Norge

Typeskilt finnes på apparatens underside.

Observer: Nettbryteren er sekundert innkoplet. Den innebygde netdelen er derfor ikke frakoplet nettet så lenge apparatet er tilsluttet nettkontakten.

For å redusere faren for brann eller elektrisk støt, skal apparatet ikke utsettes for regn eller fuktighet.



English

# **Contents**

General Information	
About Wireless Music Station	
Clock Radio WAK3300	8
Supplied accessories	8
Minimum system requirement	8
Philips on-line support	9
Environmental information	10
Maintenance	10
Safety information	10

# Controls

Controls on the set	13
Remote control14-	15

# Preparation

Using the remote control	16
To replace the remote control	's battery
16	-
Using the navigation controls	16
I Ising the alphanumeric keys	17

Using the	alphanumeric keys		1	7
-----------	-------------------	--	---	---

# Installation

Placing WAK3300 19
Setting up the system19
Connecting to power supply
Select languages19
Set clock
Connect WAK3300 (Station) to Philips
Wireless Music Center
<b>Connecting WAK3300 to Philips Wireless</b>
Music Center or a UPnP-enabled music
server
Connecting WAK3300 (Station) to
Philips Wireless Music Center
Connecting WAK3300 to a
UPnP-enabled music server 20-21
Installing FM antenna
Using AC power
<b>U</b> 1

Basic functions	
Switching to standby/on and selecting	
sound sources	•
	3
Accessing sources/settings from	
the main menu 24	4
Clock setting	4
Adjust clock setting 24	4
Display clock setting during playback24	4
Volume control 2	5
MUTE	5
Sound control2	5
DSC (Digital Sound Control)	5
Bass adjustment2	5
Display adjustment	6
Contrast	6
Selecting languages 20	6
Viewing device information	6

# Music

About the MUSIC source	27
Playing MUSIC source	27
Selecting and searching	28
Select a different option	28
Fast scroll an option list	28
Select a track in current album	
during playback	28
Different play modes: REPEAT, SHI	UFFLE
29	
Moving music playback between Co	enter
and WAK3300 (Station)	30
MUSIC FOLLOWS ME	30

MUSIC BROADCAST ...... 31

1			
2			

English

# FM radio

Tuning to radio stations	32
Programming radio stations	
	33
Autostore: automatic programming	32
Manual programming	33
To listen to a preset station	33

# Alarm

Setting alarm	34
Set alarm time	34
Set repeat mode	35
Select alarm sound source	35
Turning on/off the alarm	36
De-activating the alarm temporarily .	36
Stop alarm for a 8-minute period	36
Stop alarm for a set period	36

# Network setting

Connecting to external network .	37
Create a connection profile	37-38
Edit the connection profile	38
Save preset connection profiles .	38-39
Change the encryption key to a	
connection profile	39

Internet Support	40
Check network conne	ection 40
Register user	40
Update software	40
-	

Device setting	41
Setting sleep timer	41
Reset	41
Firmware upgrade	42
Renaming the device	42

Troubleshooting .	
-------------------	--

# About WAK3300 Wireless Music Station Clock Radio

WAK3300 is an excellent addition both to the Wi-Fi network of Philips Wireless Music Center, and to your home PC network. With automatic installation and connection, WAK3300 can be easily added to the Center's Wi-Fi network. The complete music library on the Centre can be streamed to WAK3300 wirelessly, via **Wi-Fi**.

The music library on your PC is also playable on the WAK3300 via <u>UPnP</u>.

In addition to easy access to music, WAK3300 provides you with various alarm setting options.

**Wi-Fi** or IEEE802.11 b/g, is the international leading industry standard for wireless broadband networking. Digital data will be transferred with wider range and bandwidth.

**UPnP** Univeral Plug and Play (UPnP<sup>™</sup>) builds on standard networking technologies and provides standardized protocols for a wide variety of home and small business devices. It allows easy interoperability of all the devices supporting the networking technologies.

## Supplied accessories

- Remote control with 1 x CR2025 battery
- Adapter

# Minimum system requirement

#### Audio Center

- Philips Wireless Music Center
- or
- PC with UPnP media server software installed and enabled (e.g. Philips Media Manager, Musicmatch®, Window Media Connect ®), or

#### Network

 Wireless connection (Wi-Fi 802.11 b/g compatible) Ad-hoc or Infrastructure

#### or

10/100M Ethernet LAN connection

#### This set complies with the radio interference requirements of the European Community.

Philips Consumer Electronics BG Entertainment Solutions hereby declares that this product WAK3300 is in compliance with the essential requirements and other relevant provisions of Directive 1999/5/EC.

# **General information**

# **Philips on-line support**

Products from Philips have been designed and manufactured to the highest quality standards. If your Philips "Connected Planet" product is not working correctly, we recommend that you check the User Manual to verify that your product has been properly connected and configured.

To enhance your home entertainment experience, our Connected Planet support website (www.philips. com/support) will offer you all the information you need to fully enjoy your product, as well as the new additions to our exciting range of products.

#### Please visit: www.philips.com/support and

enter your product name (WAK3300) to view:

- FAQ (Frequently Asked Questions)
- Latest user manuals and PC software manuals
- Firmware upgrade files for WAK3300
- Latest PC software downloads
- Interactive troubleshooting

As it is possible for you to upgrade your product, we recommend that you register your product on www. philips.com/register for us to inform you as soon as new and free upgrades are available.

Enjoy your WAK3300 !

# Environmental information

All redundant packaging material has been omitted. We have done our utmost to make the packaging easily separable into three mono materials: cardboard (box) polystyrene foam (buffer) and polyethylene (bags, protective foam sheet).

Your set consists of materials which can be recycled if disassembled by a specialised company. Please observe the local regulations regarding the disposal of packaging materials, exhausted batteries and old equipment.

# Disposal of your old product

Your product is designed an manufactured with high quality materials and components, which can be recycled and reused.

When this crossedout wheeled bin symbol is attached to a product it means the product is covered by the European Directive 2002/96/EC



Please inform yourself about the local separate collection system for electrical and electronic products.

Please act according to your local rules and do not dispose of your old products with your normal household waste. The correct disposal of your old product will help prevent potential negative consequences for the environment and human health.

# Maintenance Cleaning the Set

 Use a soft cloth slightly moistened with a mild detergent solution. Do not use any solution that contains alcohol, spirits, ammonia or abrasives.

# Safety information

- Place the set on a flat, firm and stable surface.
- Keep the system, batteries or discs away from excessive moisture, rain, sand or any heat sources such as heating equipment or direct sunlight.
- Place the set in a location with adequate ventilation to prevent internal heat buildup in your system. Allow at least 10 cm (4 inches) clearance from the rear and the top of the unit and 5 cm (2 inches) from each side.
- Never cover the ventilation openings with items such as newspapers, table-cloths, curtains, etc. as this will impede ventilation.
- Never expose the set to water dripping or splashing.
- Never place objects filled with liquids, such as vases on the set.
- Never place sources of naked flame, such as lighted candles, on the set.
- The mechanical parts of the set contain self-lubricating bearings and must not be oiled or lubricated.
- Maximum operation temperature (40 degree Celsius).

# **General information**

# CAUTION

Modification of the product could result in hazardous EMC radiation or other unsafe operations.

When disconnecting the product from the mains, make sure to take the plug out of the wall socket completely.

Children could seriously injure themselves as the free end of the cable may still be live when only the connector is removed from the MAINS socket at the back of the unit.



Be responsible Respect copyrights

The making of unauthorized copies of copy-protected material, including computer programmes, files, broadcasts and sound recordings, may be an infringement of copyrights and constitute a criminal offence. This equipment should not be used for such þurþoses.

# Controls



# Controls on the Set

(Top, front and right panels)

# ျာ STANDBY ON / ECO POWER ပံ

- press briefly to switch on the set;
- press and hold to switch the set to powersaving mode
- Red indicator: lights up in red when the set is switched to standby mode or powersaving mode

# 2 HOME

enters main menu (to select sound source or system settings)

## 3 ALARM ON / OFF SLEEP TIMER

# ALARM:

turns the alarm on/off; displays the alarm setting

SLEEP TIMER: sets the sleep timer.

# (4) MENU

 enters or exits the function menu of current sound source

# 5 SNOOZE

 eshows clock briefly or stops the alarm for a 8-minute period

# 6 VOLUME +,-

adjusts the volume level

# (7) ◀/▼/▲/►

 navigation controls (left, right, up, down) to scroll through the option list

## ◀

returns to previous option lists

# ◀/ ►

 skips/searches tracks backward/forward (in playback screen)

# ► /OK

- confirms selection
- Tuner: enters the list of preset stations
   ▼/▲
- scroll the display screen upward or downward
- Tuner: tunes to radio stations

## 4

- toggles playback screen and previous option list
   OK/▶II
- starts or pauses playback

# (8) IR

sensor for the infrared remote control **Helpful hint:** Always point the remote control towards this sensor.

# 9 A

- 3.5 mm headphone socket
   Helpful hint:
  - Adjust the volume to a moderate level before plugging in the headphones;
  - Connecting headphones will switch the speakers off.

# 10 Display

- shows status of the set

# Controls



# **Remote control**

#### 1 Source buttons MUSIC

 selects the music library (on a Wireless Music Station or a UPnP-enabled music server)

#### INTERNET RADIO

no such function on this set

#### TUNER

selects the FM radio source

## 2 STANDBY-ON ()

press briefly to switch the set on

#### 3 MENU

 enters or exits the function menu of current sound source

## (4) HOME

enters main menu (to select sound source or system settings)

#### 5 VOL +,-

- adjusts the volume level

#### 6 MUTE

turns the sound off temporarily

#### 7 SET ALARM

enters the alarm setting mode

#### **8 REPEAT ALARM**

To set the repeat alarm mode.

#### 9 DIM

- changes the brightness of display illumination

# 10 SNOOZE

stops the alarm for a 8-minute period

# **11 SLEEP TIMER**

sets the sleep timer

# 12 SPACE

Text entry: inputs blank space

# 13 DSC (Digital Sound Control)

- selects pre-defined sound settings: Neutral (by default), Pop, Rock, Classic, Jazz
- turns off sound settings

#### DBB

turns the bass enhancement on or off

## (14) Alphanumeric keys

 Text entry: inputs desired numbers, letters or symbols

## 15 REPEAT

- selects continuous playback
   SHUFFLE
- selects random playback

#### 16 Backspace ■

- Text entry: deletes the input before cursor
- MUSIC: stops playback

## 17 PROG / CAP ON/OFF

TUNER: to manually program preset FM radio

# Controls

stations

- Text entry: toggles between uppercase (CAP ON) or lowercase (CAP OFF) letters
- (18) ◀/▼/▲/►
- navigation controls (left, right, up, down) to scroll through the option list

◀

- returns to previous option list
- Text entry: moves the cursor backward
- skips/searches tracks backward/forward (in playback screen)

► /OK

- confirms selection
- Tuner: enters the list of preset stations
   Text entry: confirms entry and moves the cursor forward

▼/▲

- scroll the display screen upward or downward
- Tuner: tunes to radio stations

#### 

 toggles between the playback screen and previous option list

#### OK/▶II

starts or pauses playback

#### **19 MUSIC FOLLOWS ME**

- **MUSIC:** toggles music playback between the Wireless Music Center and Station

# Using the remote control

#### **IMPORTANT!**

 Remove the protective plastic tab before using the remote control.



 Always point the remote control directly towards the IR sensor on the set you wish to operate.

To replace the remote control's battery

#### Press and hold • as indicated

- 2 Pull out the battery tray at 2 simultaneously
- 8 Remove the old battery and put in a new CR2025 battery
- Put back the battery tray



#### CAUTION!

- Remove the battery when it is exhausted or when the remote control will not be used for a long time.
- Batteries contains chemical substances, hence they should be disposed of properly.

## Using navigation controls

When selecting options on the screen of the set, you often need to use the navigation controls  $\triangleleft/\checkmark/\land$ 

- Press ▼/▲ to highlight an option
- 2 Enter its submenu or select a checkbox by pressing ►
- 3 Press ◀ to return to the previous option list
- Press **OK** to confirm



# Using alphanumeric keys

Use the alphanumeric keys to input letters or numbers.

- When a text box appears, press the corresponding alphanumeric keys repeatedly until the desired letter/number appears
- Press ◀ / ◀ to move the cursor forward/backward



#### Helpful hint:

- You will enter the previous/next option list if the cursor reaches the beginning or end of the text box.
- Press **SPACE** to input blank space.
- Press BACKSPACE to delete the input before the cursor.
- Press CAP ON/OFF to input uppercase (CAP ON) or lowercase (CAP OFF) letters

Press OK to close the text box and move on to the next option list



# Installation



# Placing WAK3300

Before you decide where and how to place the WAK3300, take note of the following:

- Install the set near the AC outlet or where the AC power plug can be reached easily.
- Avoid installing the set between thick walls. The WAK3300 and Philips Wireless Music Center/a UPnP-enabled device should never be blocked by 2 or more walls.
- Avoid placing the set close to large metal objects.
- Keep the set away from sources of interference (such as microwave ovens, DECT phones, bluetooth devices, cordless phones and other Wi-Fi products, etc.)

# Setting up the system

### Connecting to power supply

- a. Place the WAK3300 beside the Philips Wireless Music Center in order to connect to it. To connect to a UPnP-enabled music server through an Ethernet cable, connect the Ethernet cable to the Ethernet ports on WAK3300 and the Access Point
  - b. Connect the WAK3300's power cord to a wall outlet

#### Select languages

Press the navigation controls 3 or 4 and 2 to select your desired language



- Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select either the 24hour or 12-hour clock
- 2 Press  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\blacktriangledown$  and  $\blacktriangleright$  to select current day of





**3** Press  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\checkmark$  and  $\blacktriangleright$  to select hour or minute,

*	1/7	Ύπ
<b>∢ M</b> ond	ay	ا⊙∢
Tues	day	0
Wedn	iesday	0
Thurs	sday	0
Frida	У	0

#### and press ► to confirm.

The following will be shown on the display



Philips Music Center UPnP Music Server Helpful hint:

Set up the	
connection to	
Philips Music Cen… ▶	
UPnP Music Server	

- If you have selected the 12-hour clock, press ▲ or  $\lor$  and  $\blacktriangleright$  to select **AM** or **PM**.

# Connecting WAK3300 to Philips Wireless Music Center or a UPnP-enabled music server

Choose to connect to either a Philips Wireless Music Center or a UPnP-enabled music server.

#### Connecting WAK3300 (Station) to Philips Wireless Music Center

Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Philips Music Center

→ The display will show Searching for Center

- Check that the Center is switched on and is already in the HD source
- On the Center, select Add New Station
   a. Press MENU to enter the MENU screen
  - b. Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to enter Station Mgnt menu
  - c. Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Add New Station
  - → You will enter InstallationMode. Searching for the new station starts
  - Playback will stop on the previously associated station if you are playing on the HD source

## On the WAK3300

- ➔ The main menu will appear when WAK3300 is connected to the Center
- ④ On the Center, press STOP after all the Sta-



tions are found Unplug WAK3300 and relocate as desired

# **IMPORTANT!**

 For better Wi-Fi reception, adjust location of the Center and Station.

# Helpful hint:

 If the Philips Wireless Music Center is already connected to your home network, follow the abovementioned steps 1 to 4 to connect WAK3300 to Philips Wireless Music Center via the network's Access Point.

## Connecting WAK3300 to a



# UPnP-enabled music server

The UPnP music server can be a PC with UPnP media software installed and enabled (e.g. Philips Media Manager, Musicmatch<sup>®</sup>, Window Media Connect<sup>®</sup>) or other UPnP-enabled devices.

- a. Check that you have already turned on a wireless/wired Access Point (not supplied by Philips)
  - **b.** Check that the UPnP device is connected to the Access Point

## If you are using a wireless Access Point

- On the WAK3300, press the navigation controls
   ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select UPnP Music Serv
  - er
  - → The Select Network screen appears
     → Searching... appears when the set is
  - searching for available networks
  - ightarrow The list of networks appears
- a. Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select the network where the UPnP device

# Installation

is located

**b.** Set the Encryption key:

**b1.** Enter the Encryption key (WEP orWPA) using the alphanumeric keys if you have already set an Encryption key for your network

### or

Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ repeatedly to select a letter, digit or symbol **b2.** Press **OK** to confirm

#### c. Select Auto (DHCP) Helpful hint:

-You can also select Static IP and assign an





IP address as prompted using the alphanumeric keys.

- d. Select No when the Enable Proxy Server screen appears
- e. Select Yes to apply the setting
  - → The WAK3300 will be restarted
  - The main menu will appear when WAK3300 is connected to the UPnP server
- It is a select another network
  - a. press HOME to enter the main menu
  - b. press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Setting



c. Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Network followed by Quick

Setup

The following will be shown on the display: Philips Music Center UPnP Music Server

- d. Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼and ► to select UPnP Music Server
  - → The Select Network screen appears
  - → Searching... appears when the set is searching for available networks
  - → The list of networks appears
- 5 Follow the above-mentioned Step 3

# If you are using a wired Access Point

- On the WAK3300, press the navigation controls
  - ▲ or ▼and ▶ to select UPnP Music Server
     → Wired Ethernet will appear at the bottom of the screen

Press ► to enter the setup menu of Wired Ethernet

- a. Select Auto (DHCP)
- b. Select No when the Enable Proxy Server screen appears
- c. Select Yes to apply the setting
- ➔ The WAK3300 will be restarted
- ➔ The main menu will appear when the WAK3300 is connected to the UPnP server



# Installing FM antenna

#### WARNING:

 Never make or change connections when the power supply is switched on.

WAK3300 comes with a pigtail FM antenna.



Extend the pigtail antenna

2 Shift the antenna to different positions for optimal reception (as far away as possible from the TV, VCR or other radiation sources)

Fix the end of the pigtail to the wall Using AC power

# Using AC power

- Make sure all connections have been made before switching on the power supply
- 2 Connect the AC power cord to the wall socket. This switches on the power supply

When the set is switched to standby, it is still consuming some power. Remove the power plug from the wall socket to disconnect the set from the power supply completely.

The rating plate is located at the backside of the set

For users in the U.K.: please follow the instructions on page 2.

# Switching to standby/on and selectting sound sources

- To switch the set on, press STANDBY-ON/ECO POWER 也 again
  - → The set resumes the last source selected

2 To select sound sources, press the source button on the remote control

#### (e.g. MUSIC, TUNER) or

On the set, select sound sources on the main menu (see Accessing sources/settings from the main menu)



# Switching to power-saving mode

In power-saving (Eco power) mode, the Wi-Fi connection on the set will be switched off, It is impossible to playback the music library on the Centre or the UPnP-enabled PC when the WAK3300 has been switched to ECO POWER mode

- When the set is switched on, press and hold STANDBY-ON/ ECO POWER (1) on the
  - set to switch it to Eco power mode .
  - ➔ The Red indicator lights up
  - $\rightarrow$  The clock display appears
  - → ▲ appears, indicating minimum Wi-Fi reception



# Helpful hint:

 In the standby/Eco power mode, the previous networking, sound, display, language, tuner presets and the volume level (maximum: the moderate level) settings will be retained in the memory of the set.

# Accessing sources/settings from the main menu

All of the WAK3300's sources/settings are accessible from the main menu.

Press HOME to enter the main menu



Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select your desired sound source or setting menu In the Music IP menu, you can select your mu-



sic sound source from the music library of either the Philips Wireless Music Center or the UPnPenabled device

In the **Radio** 🔤 menu, you can select the FM radio sound sou<u>rc</u>e

In the Alarm A menu, you can set alarm timings, alarm sound source and alarm mode In the Setting menu, you can adjust or view the settings of the clock time, network, device, sound or display

# **Clock** setting

#### Adjust clock setting

- Enter the Setting menu from the main menu
- 2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Day and Time followed by Time format or Set date & time



Follow the steps 1-4 under Installation: Set clock to adjust the clock setting

#### Display clock setting during playback

#### Clock display as screen saver:

In WAK3300, the clock display also serves as the screen saver. If no action is executed for 3 minutes (default) during WAK3300's playback, the clock display will appear as screen saver.

- To adjust the screen saver interval:
- Enter the Setting menu from the main menu
- 2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Display followed by Screen Saver
- Press ▲ or ▼ and ► to select your desired time period (in minutes): 3, 5, 10, 20 or 30

#### Check clock setting during playback:

Press and hold SNOOZE until the clock display appears

# Volume control

- Check that playback has started
- Adjust the volume using the VOLUME (VOL)
   +/- buttons



# MUTE

During playback, you can temporarily switch off the sound without switching off the set.

● Press MUTE to switch off the sound → Playback continues without sound.

To switch on the sound, press MUTE again or adjust the volume with VOL +.

 You can also switch on the sound by activating MUSIC BROADCAST on the Center.



# Sound control

## dsc (Digital Sound Control)

DSC (or EQ) enables you to select predefined sound settings.

 On the remote control, press DSC repeatedly until your desired sound setting appears on the display



# or

- Enter the Setting menu from the main menu
- 2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Sound followed by Set EQ.
- Press ▲ or ▼ and ► to select from Pop (default), Rock, Classic, Jazz or Off

я	10:38 AM	Yul
♦ Pop	1	ا⊚∢
Roc	:k	0
Cla	ssic	0
ļaz:	z	0
Off		0

## Bass adjustment

 On the remote control, press DBB (Dynamic Bass Boost) once or more to turn DBB on or off or

**1** Press **HOME** to enter the Setting menu

- 2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ► to select Sound
- Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to turn DBB on/off Helpful hint:
  - Only DBB on or DBB OFF will appear depending on the current DBB setting.

# **Basic functions**

# Display adjustment

You can adjust the contrast and brightness settings on the display.

- Enter the **Setting** menu from the main menu
- 2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select **Display**



# Contrast:

- a. Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Contrast
- ➔ The contrast setting menu appears
- b. Press ▲ or ▼ to increase or reduce the contrast



## **Brightness:**

- **a.** Press  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\checkmark$  and  $\triangleright$  to select **Dim**
- **b.** Press ▲ or ▼ to increase or reduce the brightness

#### or

On the remote control, press **DIM** to adjust the display's brightness.



# Selecting languages

• Enter the **Setting** menu from the main menu

- 2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Language
- Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select the desired language: English, Français, Español, Nederlands, Italiano or Deutsch

# Viewing device information

• Enter the Setting menu from the main menu



2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Network followed by Device Status

¢	10:38 AM	Ϋ́ι
Devi	ce status	(1)
Devi	ce name:	
My s	tation	
•		•

Press ► or ◄ repeatedly to view the desired device information

# About MUSIC source

From the MUSIC source, you will be able to access the music library from the Philips Wireless Music Center or a UPnP-enabled music server. depending on the device WAK3300 has been connected to during the installation process.

# Playing MUSIC source

- Check that the Philips Wireless Music Center or the UPnP music server has been switched on
- On WAK3300, bress MUSIC on the remote control to select music source
- → The display shows the connected music source 3 Press ► to enter the music source
  - $\rightarrow$  The display shows  $\mathbf{I}$  and the music library on the music source
- Press the navigation controls  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\checkmark$  and  $\triangleright$  to select your option
- S Press OK/►II to start playback
- Press **OK/**▶**II** on a highlighted artist, genre or album to start playback from the beginning of the selected item
  - ➔ Playback starts from current selection
  - ➔ The playback screen appears:
  - on the top: current clock/alarm/sleep timer settings

in the middle: current track name, artist, album name, play mode and sound settings



at the bottom: playback status (e.g > play, II pause), elapsed playing time, total playing time of current track)

- It o pause playback, press OK/►II. Press the button again to resume playback.



- If no action is executed for 3 minutes (default) during playback, the clock display will appear as the screen saver.



- When an action is detected, you will enter the playback/menu screen.

# Selecting and searching

## Select a different option

- When in playback screen, press the navigation control ▲ to return to the previous option list
- Press ▲ or ▼ repeatedly and ▶ to select an option



To quickly find your desired option (e.g. an album or a track) in a long option list, fast scroll the option list.

- In the long option list, press and hold the navigation controls ▲ or ▼
  - The option list scrolls upward/downward at an increasing speed
  - ➔ The initial letter of the current option appears for easy identification
- 2 Release ▲ or ▼ when you recognize the desired option



#### Playback

#### Alpha-Numeric Search

Anytime during navigation in the music content library,you can use the alphanumeric keys on the remote control to make the highlight jump to the position of the item beginning with the character matched the key pressed.

Enter second level content lists, which includes: list of playlists, list of albums, list of artists, list of genres, list of tracks, list of internet radio stations.

Take the similar text input method widely used on mobile phones. For example, press '2' once input the letter 'A' and press '2' three times continuously will input the letter 'C'.

#### Different play modes: REPEAT,SHUFFLE Repeat 1

plays current track continuously

### Repeat all 🖽

repeats all the tracks (under current Artist, Genre or Album)

## Repeat & Shuffle 💀 🗷

repeats all the tracks (under current Artist, Genre or Album) in random order

## Shuffle 🔀

all tracks (under current Artist, Genre or Album) are played in random order

#### Off

exit Repeat and/or Shuffle playing mode

On the remote control, press REPEAT orland SHUFFLE once or more to select the different play modes



To return to normal playback, press REPEAT or/and SHUFFLE repeatedly until the various modes are no longer displayed





0
D.

**•** Press **MENU** to enter the play modes menu

- Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select "Repeat & Shuffle"
- In Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select your option

# Music

# Moving music playback between Philips Wireless Music Center and WAK3300 (Station)

Up to 5 Stations can be added to the Wi-Fi network of the Center. You will be able to move your music between the Center and the Stations via Wi-Fi. Even in different parts of your home, you and your family will still enjoy and share music with ease.

# MUSIC FOLLOWS ME

As you move around the house, let the music move with you, between the **Center** and **Station** or between **Station** and **Station**.

# On the source unit (Center or Station), where music is playing:

On HD (MUSIC) source, select and play the album or playlist you wish to play on the destination unit

## Helpful hint:

- Press ►II to interrupt playback if you want the playback to continue from where it paused on the destination unit.
- Selected play modes (e.g. I a will be retained on the destination unit (see Different play modes: REPEAT, SHUFFLE)

 Press MUSIC FOLLOWS ME to activate the function
 → The icon (, appears

#### Helpful hint:

- MUSIC FOLLOWS ME will be automatically deactivated if you do not actvate MUSIC FOLLOWS ME on the destination unit within 5 minutes
- To deactivate MUSIC FOLLOWS ME, press MUSIC FOLLOWS ME again

# On the destination unit (Center or Station), where the music will continue:

- Check that you have switched the destination unit on or to standby mode
- Select MUSIC FOLLOWS ME
  - Playback of the selected music will stop on the source unit and continues on the destination unit.
  - ightarrow The icon 🖻 disappears
- S To stop MUSIC FOLLOWS ME, press STOP on the destination unit

# Helpful hint:

# After MUSIC FOLLOWS ME is activated

- on the destination unit, on the source unit:
- make sure it is switched on or already in standby mode
- you can select and playback other tracks or source



# MUSIC BROADCAST

**MUSIC BROADCAST** allows you to broadcast music from the **Center** to **Stations**.

# On Stations

Check that you have switched the Stations on or to standby mode

# On the Center

On HD source, select and play the album or playlist you wish to broadcast to the Stations

I Press MUSIC BROADCAST to activate → The icon 
appears on the Center and the Stations. 5-seconds countdown starts



# Helpful hint:

- Press STOP on the Station to exit MU-SIC BROADCAST on that station. To broadcast music to the Station again, press STOP ■ on the Center and then, activate MUSIC BROADCAST again on the Center.
- MUSIC BROADCAST will also stop when:
  - you switched the Center to Standby or ECO POWER mode;
  - the selected album or playlist has reached the end.

#### → On the Center and Stations Selected music will start to play simultaneously

after the 5-seconds countdown

To stop MUSIC BROADCAST, press STOP ■ on Center



# FM radio

# Tuning to radio stations

- Check that your WAK3300 has been switched on
- Press TUNER on the remote control to select the FM radio source
  - Playback screen appears. The display will show:
     , radio station frequency and a preset number (if programmed)



- Press and hold ▲ or ▼ until the frequency in the display starts to run
  - The radio automatically tunes to a station of sufficient reception. Display shows Auto search during automatic tuning



- Repeat step 3 if necessary until you find the desired radio station
- To tune to a weak station, press ▲ or ▼ briefly and repeatedly until optimal reception is detected

## **Programming radio stations**

You can store up to 40 preset radio stations in the memory.

#### Auto store: automatic programming

Autostore automatically starts programming radio stations from preset 1.

#### Select Auto store,

**a.** Press **MENU** to enter the function menu

- **b.** Use the navigation controls **▲** or **▼** and **▶** to select **Auto store**
- → Display shows: Auto store
- After all the available stations are stored, the display shows the total number of stored stations
- $\rightarrow$  The last selected station resumes playback



- Tune to your desired radio station (see Tuning to radio stations)
- On the remote control, press PROG (or OK) to store the station
  - The station is stored in the first vacant preset location. The display shows Preset saved followed by its preset number



3 Repeat steps 1-2 to store other stations

#### Helpful hint:

 If more than 40 stations are stored, the latest station will replace the earliest preset station.

#### To listen to a preset station

- In the playback screen, press ► to enter the list of preset stations
  - → will not appear on the screen if the list of preset stations is empty



2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select the desired station

à	1/40	Ϋ́́ι
<b>∢01</b>	89.75	١⊙
02	98.35	0
03	101.88	0
04	95.60	0
05	106.08	0

#### Helpful hint:

- If no action is executed for 3 minutes (default) during playback, the clock display will appear as the screen saver.
- When an action is detected, you will enter the playback/menu screen.

# Alarm

#### Setting alarm

WAK3300 provides a variety of alarm settings to meet your different needs.

# Before setting the alarm, check that your WAK3300's clock settings are correct.

To set alarm, follow the subsequent steps of setting alarm time, selecting repeat mode and selecting alarm sound source.

### Set alarm time

Press HOME to enter the main menu, and then select the Alarm menu by pressing the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶



- **2** Press  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\checkmark$  and  $\triangleright$  to select **Alarm on** to turn on the alarm
- **3** Press  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\blacktriangledown$  and  $\blacktriangleright$  to select **Alarm time**



➔ You will enter the alarm setting mode. The hour digits are highlighted

④ Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ repeatedly to set the hour

#### or

Use the **alphanumeric keys** to input your desired hour digits



➔ The minute digits are highlighted



S Repeat Step 4 to set the minute
Press ► to confirm the alarm setting

#### Set repeat mode

When the alarm sounds at the preset alarm time, you can have it de-activated temporarily and repeated after a certain period.

In the Alarm menu, press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Repeat

Ļ.	2/4	<b>Tu</b> l
Once		0
<b>∢</b> Daily		•⊙]
Week	lays	0
Week	end	0

→ The display shows the list of repeat modes
Once: activates the alarm only once
Daily: repeats the alarm every day
Weekdays: repeats the alarm on each weekday
Weekend: repeats the alarm on each weekend

Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select the desired repeat mode

# Select alarm sound source

The alarm sound can be your favorite songs, radio stations or just buzz.

In the Alarm menu, press ▲ or ▼ and ► to select Source

➔ The display shows the list of alarm sound sources



2 Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select the desired alarm sound source

# To use Music as the alarm sound source

3 Create an alarm music library



- a. Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to enter a library
- ➔ The display will show the music library of the devices currently connected to WAK3300
- **b.** Use the navigation controls  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\blacktriangledown$  and  $\blacktriangleright$  to select your desired track
- ➔ The display shows the music selection options:

Fill all days: uses the selected song for all days



Auto Select: uses the selected song for the first

day; and for other days, randomly assigns different songs from the album, artist or genre of the selected song

c. Press OK to confirm

→ The selected songs are transferred to the alarm music library

**To use Radio as the alarm sound source** Select a preset radio station (see **FM radio:** 

🐥 10:38 AM 🏭	🐥 10:38 АМ 🎢 I
Alarm Music	Alarm Music
Mon: Song A	Mon: Song A
Tue : Song A	Tue : Song B
Wed: Song A	Wed: Song C
Thu : Song A	Thu : Song D

#### **Programming radio stations**)

- a. In the list of preset radio stations, use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select your desired preset station
- b. Press OK to confirm

# Alarm

# Turning on/off the alarm

On the set, press the ALARM ON/OFF button to turn the alarm on or off



→ The display shows Alarm on or Alarm off
→ The icon □ will appear or disappear correspondingly

# De-activating the alarm temporarily

#### Stop alarm for an 8-minute period

When the alarm sounds at the preset alarm time, you can stop it after a certain period.

- When the alarm sounds, press the SNOOZE button
  - → The alarm will be muted for 8 minutes
  - → @ appears during the 8-minute period



Press SNOOZE again if desired Helpful hint:

> If you continue to press SNOOZE every other 8 minutes and not stop the alarm, this cycle will continue for another hour before the alarm ceases

#### Connecting to power supply

- When the alarm sounds, press **REPEAT ALARM** on the remote control
  - → The alarm stops and repeats itself after a set period (see Setting alarm: Set repeat mode)



#### Helpful hint:

 To check the alarm setting, press and hold SNOOZE until the clock display appears

# **Network setting**

# Connecting to external Wi-Fi network

WAK3300 can easily connect to different external Wi-Fi networks

## Create a connection profile

To establish a connection to external networks, create a connection profile first.

Press HOME to enter the main menu, and then select the Settings menu by pressing the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶



2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Network followed by Quick Setup



The following will be shown on the display: Philips Music Center UPnP Music Server

- 3 Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select UPnP Music Server
  - → The Select Network screen appears
  - Searching... will appear when the set is searching for available networks
  - ightarrow The list of networks appears

# Helpful hint:

- If your desired network is not in the list, check that the IP broadcasting function is enabled on the PC, then press the navigation controls
  - $\blacktriangle$  or  $\blacktriangledown$  and  $\blacktriangleright$  to select **Rescan the Net-**

#### work

- a. Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select the desired network
  - **b.** Set the Encryption key
    - **b1.** Select "Change"

**b2.** Enter the Encryption key (WEP orWPA) using the alphanumeric keys if you have already set an Encryption key for the network **or** 

#### or

Press the navigation controls  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\triangledown$  repeatedly to select a letter, digit or symbol

**b3.** Press **OK** to confirm



# c. Select Auto (DHCP)



# Helpful hint:

- Check that the automatic IP allocation (DHCP) function is enabled in the network's Access Point. For details, refer to your Access Point's user manual.
- -You can also select **Static IP** and assign an IP address as prompted using the alphanumeric keys.
- **d.** If you use the connection profile for Internet access and you visit websites via a proxy server, enable the proxy server function and configure the proxy port as prompted

e. Select Yes to apply the setting



- → WAK3300 will be restarted
- → The main menu will appear when the connection is finished

#### Edit the connection profile

- Follow the steps 1 to 2 under Create a connection profile
- Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select the network (connection profile) to be changed
- Press ▲ or ▼ and ► to select Other (Advanced)
  - a. Edit the network name (SSID) using the al-



phanumeric keys, and press OK to confirm

b. In Network Type:

Select **Ad-hoc** (direct connection, without Access Point) or **Infrastructure** (via an Access Point)



- c. Set the Encryption key:
  - c1.Select an Encryption key: WEP or WPA
  - c2.Create the key (4 keys can be created in total) using the alphanumeric keys or the ▲/▼ key
  - c3.Select an active key
- d. Follow the steps 3c, 3d, 3e under Create a connection profile

# → WAK3300 will be restarted

➔ The main menu will appear when the connection is finished

#### Save preset connection profiles

To establish connections to more than one network, you will need to create more than one connection profile.

In WAK3300, you will be able to save up to 3 preset connection profiles. According to the network environment, select and apply the connection profile that meets your needs.

Create your desired connection profile (see Create a connection profile, Edit the connection profile)

a. In the Network menu, press ▲ or ▼ and
 to select Advanced Setting followed





by Profile Management b. Select the Enable checkbox ③ Press ◀ to return to the option list under Net-

#### work

④ Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Quick Setup. Then press the navigation controls  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\checkmark$  and ► to select UPnP Music Server → The option list of Load Profile appears **5** Press  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\checkmark$  and  $\triangleright$  to select an empty preset location → The list of networks appears In the select the desired con-one of the select the desired connection profile Enter the desired connection profile and apply it as prompted → The option list of Save to Profile abbears **8** Press  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\checkmark$  and  $\triangleright$  to select an empty preset location

# To select and apply a new connection profile

- In the Network menu, press ▲ or ▼ and ► to select Select Profile
- 2 Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select your desired con-



nection profile

Press ▲ or ▼ and ► to select OK to apply the new profile

ightarrow After the settings have been applied, the set



will restart itself automatically

# Change the encryption key of a connection profile

a. In the Network menu, press ▲ or ▼ and
 b to select Advanced Setting followed by Key Management



# **b.** Select the **Enable** checkbox

*	10:38 AN	4 Yul
Key	y manage	ment
4 En/	able	

- Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Quick Setup. Then press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and
  - to select UPnP Music Server
  - $\rightarrow$  The list of networks appears
- ④ Press the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select the network (connection profile) to be changed
  - ➔ The Select key index screen appears
- S a. Press ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select the key to be changed
  - **b.** Edit the key using the alphanumeric keys or the ▲/▼ key and **OK** to confirm.
  - c. Select "Exit key editing".
  - d. Select an active key

# Helpful hint:

- To change the encryption key of the preset connection profile, also enable **Profile**
- Management.

# **Internet Support**

English

You can update WAK3300 software via Internet.



# Check network connection

- Check your WAK3300 is properly connected to external network
- Check a PC (with the administrator's rights) of external network is connected to Internet
  - For the **Ad-hoc** connection, make sure the Internet sharing is enabled in the PC running Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Service Pack (SP)1

# **Register users**

You need to input your e-mail address to log in as a registered user.

Press HOME to enter the main menu, and then select the Setting menu by pressing the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶



- ② Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Network, Internet Support and User Setting one by one
- 3 Enter your e-mail address.
- Press OK.
- Sollow the instructions in the e-mail that would be sent to you.

# Update software

- Press HOME to enter the main menu, and then select the Setting menu by pressing the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶
- 2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Network, Internet Support and Software update one by one
- 3 Press OK.

The WAK3300 will be restarted automatically when the software update is completed.

# Setting sleep timer

You can preset a certain period of time after which the set will auotmatically switch to standby mode.

On the remote control,

Press **SLEEP TIMER** briefly and repeatedly until the desired time period appears on the display



# or

Press HOME to enter the main menu, and then select the Setting menu by pressing the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶

- Output: Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Device followed by SLEEP TIMER
  - → The display shows the following options: Sleep 15, 30, 60, 90, 120, off

Display shows the selected option briefly and returns to its previous status. The icon Z<sup>z</sup> appears



To view the countdown time to standby mode, press SLEEP TIMER again

To deactivate the sleep timer, press SLEEP TIMER repeatedly until Off is displayed

#### or

Press **STANDBY-ON/ ECO POWER** () to switch the set to standby mode

# Reset

If desired, you can restore your WAK3300 to its default settings (including the network setting).

#### Reset WAK3300:

- To change WAK3300's connected music source (e.g. from Philips Music Center to UPnP Music Server or vice versa)
- To re-establish the Wi-Fi connection between WAK3300 and Philips Wireless Music Center.
- Use a sharp-pointed tool to press the **RESET** hole on the set
  - → The display shows **Restore factory setting**
- **2** Use the navigation controls  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\checkmark$  and  $\triangleright$  to



#### select Yes

 $\rightarrow$  The set will reboot.

Follow the steps under the Installation chapter
 → You will re-establish the Wi-Fi connection be-



tween WAK3300 and Philips Wireless Music Center or a UPnP-enabled music server

## Helpful hint:

### You can also perform resetting by:

- a. Entering the Setting menu from the main menu
- b. Using the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Device followed by Restore

# **Device** setting

# Firmware upgrade

- a. Check that WAK3300 is connected to an Access Point with Internet access (see Installation: Connecting WAK3300 to a UPnP-enabled music server)
  - b. Check that the connection profile for Internet access is applied (see Network setting: Create a connection profile)
- Press HOME to enter the main menu, and then select the Setting menu by pressing the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶
- Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Device followed by Firmware
  - The display shows Upgrade to new firmware?



- Press  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\checkmark$  and  $\triangleright$  to select **Yes** 
  - → The set starts to upgrade the firmware
     → After firmware upgrading is complete, the set
  - will restart itself automatically
- Follow the steps under the Installation chapter

## **Renaming the device**

Press HOME to enter the main menu, and then select the Setting menu by pressing the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶



2 Use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ► to select Network, followed by Advanced Set-

#### ting and Edit Device Name



3 To change current device name, use the navigation controls ▲ or ▼ and ▶ to select Change name

¢	10:38 AM	Ύul
WA	K3300 Musi	c )
Sta	tion	

 Enter a new device name using the alphanumeric keys (see Preparation: Using alphanumeric keys)

#### or

Press the navigation controls  $\blacktriangle$  or  $\blacktriangledown$  repeatedly to select a letter, digit or symbol



#### WARNING

Never try to repair the system yourself, as this will invalidate the warranty. Do not open the system as there is a risk of electric shock.

If a fault occurs, first check the points listed below before taking the system for repair. If you are unable to resolve a problem by following these hints, consult your dealer or Philips for help.

#### Problem

During the first-time setup, the display on WAK3300 shows "Searching for Center" for a long time.

# After activated "Music Follow Me", the display shows "Server busy ..."

#### I get interference on my wireless (Wi-Fi) link between the Center and Station.

Philips Wireless Music Center/WAK3300 (Station) operate in the 2.4GHz radio frequency spectrum.

Many other household/IT devices also operate in the frequency spectrum, such as microwave ovens, Dect phones, bluetooth devices like bluetooth headphones, computer mouse, wireless routers, cordless phones, Wi-Fi compatible printers, PDAs. These devices may interfere with the Wi-Fi link between the Center and WAK3300, resulting in interference such as pausing during playback, slow response to your operation. The severity of interference varies, depending on the extent of radiation from the device and the strength of Wi-Fi signals in the position.

# WAK3300 is unable to connect a UPnP music server.

# WAK3300 is unable to play a few music files on the UPnP music server

#### WAK3300 does not react when buttons are pressed

### Solution

- Check that you have placed the Center and WAK3300 side by side on a flat and firm surface
- Check that the Center is already in Installation mode
- Turn off the wireless Access Point nearby if you have difficulties in connecting the Center and WAK3300.
- This is because the WAC7000 Center is encoding music. Please wait until music encoding finished.

If you are playing the set, stop playback and take the appropriate measures as follows:

- Keep the Center and WAK3300 at least 3 meters away from such devices.
- If possible, change the operating channels of the other Wi-Fi devices at your home.
- Turn the devices in different directions to minimize interference.

- ✓ Enable the UPnP server function on the UPnP device
- Turn off the firewall running on the UPnP device
- ✓ When connecting the DRM-enabled UPnP device, authorize WAK3300 in the UPnP device or update the license
- ✓ The music files have already been deleted from the UPnP server
- ✓ For DRM-protected music files, install and enable Window Media Connect(r) on the UPnP device
- ✓ When connecting DRM-enabled UPnP device, authorize WAK3300 in the UPnP device or update the license
- ✓ Turn off WAK3300 and turn it on again.

Meet Philips at the Internet http://www.philips.com

Be responsible Respect copyrights

# Need help?

Online Go to www.philips.com/suppot



WAK3300

CLASS 1 LASER PRODUCT





© Royal Philips Electronics N.V. 2008

Printed in China